
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
Notice to persons with special needs: For those requiring special assistance or 
accommodation at the meeting, please contact 702-267-1515 or the Relay Nevada TTY 
telephone 7-1-1 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
  
The Chairman reserves the right to hear agenda items out of order, combine two or 
more agenda items for consideration, remove an item from the agenda, or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.  All items are action items 
unless otherwise noted. 
 
Individuals speaking on an item will be limited to three (3) minutes and spokespersons 
for a group will be limited to ten (10) minutes.  
 
Electronic agendas can be found at:  HTTP://WWW.CITYOFHENDERSON.COM/ 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CONFIRMATION OF POSTING AND ROLL CALL 
 
III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA (For Possible Action) 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Note:  Items discussed under Public Comment cannot be acted upon at this 
meeting, but may be referred to a future agenda for consideration (NRS 
241.020).  Individuals speaking on an item will be limited to three (3) minutes 
and spokespersons for a group will be limited to ten (10) minutes.  

 
V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. MINUTES—CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN 
COMMITTEE MEETING OF JULY 24, 2012 
(For Possible Action) 

    
APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE CITY OF HENDERSON 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE MEETING OF  
JULY 24, 2012 

 
 
 

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)  
 
 

CITY OF HENDERSON 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 

 MEETING AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
3:30 p.m. 

City Hall Annex 
City Hall Annex Conference Room 

280 Water Street 
Henderson, Nevada 89015 



 
2. REQUEST FOR A HOMEOWNERS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM LOAN 

MODIFICATION FOR 255 MEYERS AVENUE (JON PAUL & DAWN DAVIS)  
 (For Possible Action) 
  
APPROVE THE HOMEOWNERS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM LOAN 
MODIFICATION FOR 255 MEYERS AVENUE (JON PAUL & DAWN DAVIS) 
 

3. REQUEST FOR A FAÇADE LOAN TO GRANT FOR 414 BASIC RD 
 (For Possible Action) 

 
CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF A FAÇADE LOAN TO GRANT FOR 414     
BASIC RD IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $10,500 
 

4. REQUEST FOR A TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 414 BASIC RD 
 (For Possible Action) 
 
CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF A TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 414 
BASIC RD IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $34,725 
 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 Note:  Items discussed under Public Comment cannot be acted upon at this 

meeting, but may be referred to a future agenda for consideration (NRS 241.020).  
Individuals speaking on an item will be limited to three (3) minutes and 
spokespersons for a group will be limited to ten (10) minutes.  

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

Agenda posted prior to 9:00 a.m. on September 12, 2012 at the following locations: 
City Hall, 240 Water Street, 1st Floor Lobbies (2) 

Multigenerational Center, 250 S. Green Valley Parkway  
Whitney Ranch Recreational Center, 1575 Galleria Drive 

    Fire Station No. 86, 96 Via Antincendio 



 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 25, 2012  LC-001

 
SUBJECT MINUTES—CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

LOAN COMMITTEE MEETING OF JULY 24, 2012  
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the City 
Manager’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve  
 
 
 



 
 
  
 
 

CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 LOAN COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
 

July 24, 2012 
 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

 Chairman Foster called the Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee to order 
at 3:37 p.m. in the City Hall Annex Conference Room, City Hall Annex,  

 280 Water Street, Henderson, Nevada.  
 
II.  CONFIRMATION OF POSTING AND ROLL CALL 
 

 MaryAnne Cruzado, Recording Secretary, confirmed the meeting had been 
noticed in accordance with the Open Meeting Law by posting the Agenda 
three working days prior to the meeting at City Hall, Henderson Convention 
Center, Green Valley Police Substation, and Fire Station No. 86.    

 
 
  Present: Chairman Tom Foster 
     Roy Borsellino 
     Tom Fay 
     Mark McGinty 
     Michelle Romero 
      
              
 
  Excused: Richard Serfas 
         
    
  Staff:  Bob Cooper, Manager of Economic Dev./Redevelopment 
    MaryAnne Cruzado, Administrative Assistant III 
    Christine Guerci-Nyhus, Senior Assistant City Attorney 
    Daphney Jeffers, Senior Administrative Analyst 
    Anthony Molloy, Business Development Supervisor 
    April Parra, Minutes Clerk 
 
 
   
     
  



Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee Meeting                                           Page 2 
July 24, 2012 – Minutes 
 
 

       
III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 

 
Anthony Molloy, Business Development Supervisor, noted that Item 3 has 
been withdrawn by staff due to the owner being granted a 60-day 
administrative extension. 
 

(Motion) Mr. Borsellino introduced a motion to accept the agenda as amended.  The 
vote favoring approval was unanimous.  Chairman Foster declared the motion 
carried.  

 
IV.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There were no comments presented by the public. 
 

V.  ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

1. MINUTES – CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN 
COMMITTEE MEETING OF APRIL 24, 2012. 

Recommend approval of the minutes from the City of Henderson Redevelopment 
Agency Loan Committee meeting of April 24, 2012. 

 
(Motion) Mr. Fay introduced a motion to approve the minutes from the City of 
 Henderson Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee meeting of 
 April 24, 2012.  The vote favoring approval was unanimous.   
 Chairman Foster declared the motion carried. 
 
2. REQUEST FOR A SIGN GRANT AWARD FOR 127 WATER STREET 

HEALTH QUEST CHIROPRACTIC AND ACTIVE REHAB., PLLC 
 

Conditional approval of the sign grant to 127 Water Street in an amount not to 
exceed $2,500. 
 
Daphney Jeffers, Senior Administrative Analyst, gave a brief summary of the item 
and stated staff recommends approval. 
 
Renderings of the project were circulated for the Committee’s review.  
  

(Motion) Ms. Romero introduced a motion to approve the sign grant to 127 Water 
Street in an amount not to exceed $2,500.  The vote favoring approval was 
unanimous.  Chairman Foster declared the motion carried.  

  



Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee Meeting                                           Page 3 
July 24, 2012 – Minutes 
 
 
 
3. REQUEST TO TERMINATE FAÇADE LOAN TO GRANT AWARD FOR 19 S. 

WATER STREET 
 

Approve the termination of the façade loan to grant award for 19 S. Water Street. 
This item was withdrawn at the request of staff.  

 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 There were no comments presented by the public. 
 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to be discussed, the meeting was adjourned at  
 3:44 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
__________________________ 
April Parra,  
Minutes Clerk  



 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 25, 2012  LC-002

 
SUBJECT REQUEST FOR A HOMEOWNERS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

LOAN MODIFICATION FOR 255 MEYERS AVENUE (JON PAUL & 
DAWN DAVIS)  
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the City 
Manager’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve  
 
 
 



Davis HAP Modification Staff Summary 
Loan Committee Meeting 

September 25, 2012 
3:30 pm Council Chambers Conference Room 

 
Property Address:   255 Meyers Avenue 
Applicant:    Jon Paul and Dawn Davis 
Proposed Used:   N/A 
Redevelopment Area:   Eastside 
City Zoning:  Residential with Redevelopment Overlay 
Design Review Required: N/A 
Sign Permit Required: N/A 
 
The Loan Committee has the authority to restructure outstanding loans provided: 

1. The principal amount owed at the time is not reduced; 
2. Deferral of any payments cannot exceed six months; 
3. The term is not being extended more than an additional 5 years and  
4. The interest rate approved is not lower than two points above like Treasury.  

 
Summary   
The loan Borrowers (Mr. and Mrs. Davis) received a Homeowners’ Assistance Program 
loan from the City of Henderson in September 2009 for $44,229.90.  The original terms 
of the loan were 5 years at 3% interest with a payment of $186.48/month leaving a 
$40,020.34 balloon payment at maturity (August 1, 2014).  Mr. Davis is a City of 
Henderson employee.  The Borrowers have not made a payment since July 2011.  A 
Notice of Default was sent to the Borrowers on September 13, 2011.  The Agency 
received a Foreclosure Mediation notification from Mrs. Davis via email on April 23, 
2012.  Since October 2011, staff including City Attorney’s Office and Human Resources, 
have been discussing the loan default and new payment schedule with Mr. Davis. 
 
The Borrowers have agreed to a $50/ bi-weekly payroll deduction and an extension of the 
maturity to August 1, 2017 on the existing amortization schedule.  Interest will continue 
to accrue at 3% on all unpaid balances; however, penalties after September 30, 2012 will 
not be assessed.  Payments will begin on the first pay period ending in October.  Attached 
are the AMG reports as of September 6, 2012. 
 
Staff is recommending that the Note Amendment including the details listed in the 
paragraph above be approved.   
 
Please note: 

1. The principal amount is not being reduced. 
2. Payments are not being deferred. 
3. The term is not being extended beyond 5 additional years. 
4. The interest rate is the original rate. 



AMENDMENT TO BALLOON NOTE 
 

This Amendment ("Amendment") dated September ___, 2012 by and between 
Jon Paul Davis and Dawn Lee Davis ("Borrower") and the City of Henderson 
Redevelopment Agency, a public body corporate and politic ("Agency" and together 
with Borrower, the "Parties") amends that certain Balloon Note ("Note") dated June 2, 
2009 executed by Borrower and the City of Henderson ("City"). Capitalized terms 
have the meanings set forth in the Note, or as otherwise set forth in this Amendment. 

RECITALS 
  
 A. City and Borrower have heretofore executed the Note pursuant to which 
the City lent Forty Four Thousand Two Hundred Twenty Nine Dollars and 90 cents 
($44,229.90) (the “Loan”) to Borrower to provide for various improvements to their 
home; 
 
 B. On May 17, 2011, the City assigned all of its interest in the Note to the 
Agency;  
 
 C. Borrower and Agency desire to enter into this Amendment to restructure 
the Note due to the financial hardship the Borrower is experiencing;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree to amend the Note as follows: 
 
Section 1. Section 3 of the Note is hereby replaced in its entirety as follows: 
 

3. Payments. 
 
(a) Repayment. I will make biweekly payments of Fifty dollars ($50.00). 

These payments will be a payroll deduction from Borrower’s City of 
Henderson paycheck and will commence with the pay period 
immediately following the execution of this Amendment. Borrower 
agrees to execute all necessary paperwork for the commencement of 
the payroll deduction. 

(b) Maturity Date. The total outstanding Loan principal, together with 
interest and any other amounts owing under the Note, is due and 
payable on August 1, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”). 

(c) Place of Payment. I will make my monthly payments as directed by the 
Agency. 

 
Section 2. All other provisions under the Note remain in full force and effect. 
 
              

Signatures on following page 

 - 1 - Amendment to Note 
  Davis 



 - 2 - Amendment to Note 
  Davis 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Amendment as of the 
date set forth at the beginning of this Amendment. 

BORROWER:      AGENCY: 

 

________________ _______   __________________________ 
Jon Paul Davis     Jacob Snow 
       Executive Director 
 
       Approved as to form: 
      
Dawn Lee Davis 
             
       Josh M. Reid 
       General Counsel 
 
 

















 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 25, 2012  LC-003

 
SUBJECT REQUEST FOR A FAÇADE LOAN TO GRANT FOR 414 BASIC RD 

 
PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the City 

Manager’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve 
 

 
 
 



Facade Loan to Grant Staff Summary 
Loan Committee Meeting 

September 25, 2012 
3:30 pm City Hall Annex Conference Room 

 
Property Address:   414 Basic Road 
Applicant:    Andy Nguyen and Tony Nguyen 
Proposed Used:   K&N General Construction, Inc. 
Redevelopment Area:   Downtown 
City Zoning:  DHC-RD – Downtown Highway Commercial 
Design Review Required: Yes 
Building Permit Required: Yes 
 
Summary   
The property at 414 Basic Road was formerly used as a residential property—the 
applicants have applied for a residential conversion of the property with the intention of 
relocating their existing construction company’s (currently located in the Summerlin 
area) general offices to this location. The conversion request is still under review by other 
city departments, but staff doesn’t anticipate any issues with the request. The applicants 
will bring four (4) full-time office personnel and ten (10) full-time field employees to this 
new location. This application is for a Façade Loan to Grant for the purpose of an 
exterior remodel of this building that will include: 
 

• Landscaping with trees, shrubs, and rocks; 
• Concrete including new curb and gutter; 
• New commercial storefront metal, clear ionized dual panel glass, Low E tempered 

and tinted; 
• Remove existing siding and replace with three (3) coat stucco; 
• New fascia; 
• Refinish parapet; 
• Paint entire building Casa Bella, Shasta, and Aged Copper; 
• New roof (not an eligible program expense). 

 
Eligibility for Funding 
 
Front façade facing Basic Road is 39 feet wide - $10,500  
 
The applicants have provided the following three estimates:    
 
K&N General Construction, Inc. - $51,713 
Legend Construction & Development - $57,556 
Filios Construction, Inc. - $55,160.32 
 
The applicants intend to use K&N General Construction for the project.  
 



 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Based on the improvements that will be made to the building and job creation in the 
Downtown Redevelopment Area, this application furthers the goals and priorities of the 
Redevelopment Agency. 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that the Loan Committee conditionally approve the 
Façade Loan to Grant to 414 Basic Road in an amount not to exceed $10,500 based on 
the following listed conditions of approval:   
 

1. Applicants to complete all improvements as indicated in the estimate and per the 
attached architectural rendering, unless applicant submits revised plans that must 
be approved administratively by staff unless changes are significant enough to 
require Loan Committee Review;  

2. Execution of Loan to Grant Agreement, Promissory Note, and Deed of Trust to 
secure the debt;  

3. Approval of Design Review by City of Henderson Community Development; 
4. All work to be performed by a contractor licensed for the work in the State of 

Nevada; 
5. Interest rate of five-year Treasury Note plus 3 percent; 
6. Applicants submitting all required paper work for reimbursement;  
7. Applicants to provide Agency with a copy of contractor’s current City of 

Henderson Business License and State Contractor’s License; and 
8. Applicants encouraged to join the Water Street District Business Association. 















































 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 25, 2012  LC-004

 
SUBJECT REQUEST FOR A TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR  

414 BASIC RD 
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the City 
Manager’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve 
 

 
 
 



Tenant Improvement Grant Staff Summary 
Loan Committee Meeting 

September 25, 2012 
3:30 pm City Hall Annex Conference Room 

 
Property Address:   414 Basic Road 
Applicant:    Andy Nguyen & Tony Nguyen 
Proposed Used:   K&N General Construction, Inc. 
Redevelopment Area:   Downtown 
City Zoning:  DHC-RD – Downtown Highway Commercial 
Design Review Required: Yes 
Building Permit Required: Yes 
 
Summary   
The property at 414 Basic Road was formerly used as a residential property— the 
applicants have applied for a residential conversion of the property with the intention of 
relocating their existing construction company’s (currently located in the Summerlin 
area) general offices to this location. The conversion request is still under review by other 
city departments, but staff doesn’t anticipate any issues with the request. The applicants 
will bring four (4) full-time office personnel and ten (10) full-time field employees to this 
new location. This application is for a Tenant Improvement Grant and will include the 
following improvements: 
 

• Frame and finish of new walls; 
• Repair and/or install drywall, patch, tape and texture; 
• Replace and/or relocate interior doors and hardware; 
• New windows with low-E glass; 
• Install crown molding; 
• Upgrade and/or relocate plumbing; 
• New HVAC; 
• Install receptionist area with granite counter, stone veneer, and drywall; 
• Upgrades to restroom to satisfy ADA requirements; 
• Cabinets and granite countertops in employee break room; 
• New flooring to include ceramic tile and stamped concrete; 
• 3 color interior paint. 

 
Eligibility for Funding 
 
Building is 1,389 square feet allowing for a maximum reimbursement of $34,725  
 
The applicants have provided the following three estimates:    
 
K&N General Construction, Inc. - $82,894 
Legend Construction & Development - $101,320 
Filios Construction, Inc. - $88,791 



 
The applicants intend to use K&N General Construction for the project.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
This application and the financial capacity and history of the applicants were sent to the 
National Development Council (NDC) for review. The NDC provided a favorable 
analysis of the applicants and expressed no concern regarding their capacity to complete 
the project.  
 
Based on the improvements that will be made to the building and job creation in the 
Downtown Redevelopment Area, this application furthers the goals and priorities of the 
Redevelopment Agency. 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that the Loan Committee conditionally approve the 
Tenant Improvement Grant to 414 Basic Road in an amount not to exceed $34,725 based 
on the following listed conditions of approval:   
 

1. Applicants obtaining the required building permit prior to construction 
commencing; 

2. Execution of Grant Agreement; 
3. Applicants to provide Redevelopment Agency staff with a copy of the Certificate 

of Occupancy for the residential conversion of this structure into a commercial 
use prior to any reimbursement;  

4. Applicants submitting all required paperwork for reimbursement;  
5. Applicants to provide Agency with a copy of contractor’s current City of 

Henderson Business License and State Contractor’s License;  
6. Applicants are encouraged to join the Water Street District Business Association. 
 


















































	Loan Committee Agenda 9.25.2012
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. CONFIRMATION OF POSTING AND ROLL CALL
	III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA (For Possible Action)

	LC001- Minutes from 07.24.2012_AGN 9.25.12
	/
	REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE
	AGENDA ITEM
	SUBJECT

	07-24-12 Final ap_mc
	MINUTES
	July 24, 2012

	LC002 - Davis HAP Loan Modification_AGN
	/
	REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE
	AGENDA ITEM
	SUBJECT

	Davis Staff Analysis
	Davis Amendment to Note.Sept2012
	Davis AMG Reports 090612
	LC001_ K&N 414 Basic Rd Facade_9.25.12_AGN
	/
	REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE
	AGENDA ITEM
	SUBJECT

	414 Basic Rd K&N Staff Analysis_Facade_092512
	K&N 414 Basic FIP App Pack
	LC002_ K&N 414 Basic Rd TI Grant_9.25.12_AGN
	/
	REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE
	AGENDA ITEM
	SUBJECT

	414 Basic Rd K&N Staff Analysis_TIP_092512
	K&N 414 Basic TIP App Pack



